说明书尺寸: 17\*11.5 cm

# **Chtoocy**®

# **Solar Wireless Driveway Alarm**





Email: support@Chtoocy.com

Facebook: @Chtoocy

## Welcome

## Thank you for choosing Chtoocy!

This driveway alarm is one of our latest products that features many benefits, including:

- . A super long range of up to 1/2 mile (2600 ft)
- . Detection distance of up to a 12 foot radius
- . Only detects the motion of vehicle/ metal to avoid false alarms from leaves or animals
- . Expandable system for up to 8 sensors and additional receivers
- . Different channel indicators for each sensor
- . Includes 4 volume levels(the lowest volume is a MUTE mode), 12 melodies, and a low battery indicator
- . Solar-powered driveway sensor with a built-in 1800 mAh rechargeable battery
- . Weatherproof works well in rain, snow, thunder, or lighting
- . FM wireless technology that works well without Wi-Fi
- . Special code-matching technology to help avoid interference

We are dedicated to providing our customers with 100% satisfactory service. Please feel free to contact us if you have encountered any problems with your purchase and our friendly and professional staff will be happy to assist you.

## Support Tip:

In the event you need to contact us for support, please include your order ID in your message as well as detailed information about the issue you're experiencing.

If you have pictures or video, please include them in your message to help us identify and resolve your problem more accurately.

### **Extend & Activate Your Warranty:**

Email: support@Chtoocy.com

Facebook: @Chtoocy

## **Contents**

1	What's	incl	hahu	in the	hov?
1.	vvnats	mc	uaea	ın tne	: DOX:

- 1.1 Probe overview
- 1.2 Transmitter overview
- 1.3 Receiver overview

## 2. Getting Started

- 2.1 Power on your device
- 2.2 Check if the receiver and transmitter are paired
- 2.3 Test Signal/Detect range
- 2.4 Charging the Transmitter
- 2.5 Probe & transmitter installation
- 2.6 Melodies & Volume setting
- 2.7 Usage
- 2.8 Notes

## 3. Advanced Settings

- 3.1 RESET Button
- 3.2 PAIRED Button

## 4. Additional Notes

- 5. Troubleshooting
- 6. Adding Additional Sensors
- 7. Questions & Answers
- 8. Warranty

## 1. What's included in the box?

#### 1.1 Probe overview

The probe is only used to detect the motion detection of vehicles and metal objects. It should be buried parallel to the edge of the driveway and 0.5 ft. into the ground. The probe needs to be connected to the transmitter by a 16 ft. cable to work. When installed properly, once a moving vehicle or metal object enters the probe's 12 ft. radius, it will activate the transmitter and send a signal to the receiver.

### 1.2 Transmitter overview

The transmitter is installed with the PVC mounting tubes in an open area on the ground to help produce successful transmissions.

The transmitter will flash lights and send the signal to the receiver when the probe detects vehicles and metal objects.

The transmitter is equipped with solar panels and a built-in 1800 mAh rechargeable battery that can last 6-12 months on a full charge. If the battery of the transmitter is low, the transmitter will flash a blue light and the low battery indicator located on the receiver will flash as well whenever the transmitter triggers the alarm.

Turn On - The indicator will flash a red light

Alarm Triggered - The indicator will flash lights

Quick Pairing Button - Click the button during pairing, the indicator will flash a blue light

Charging - The indicator will show a solid red light (non-flashing)

Fully Charged - The indicator will show a solid green light (non-flashing)

Lower Power - The indicator will flash a blue light

### Note:

- 1. If there are metal objects within a 12 ft. radius of the transmitter, the transmitter may detect them and trigger the receiver's alarm even if you unplug the probe. This is normal and means the metal detection feature is working. This issue can quickly be fixed after installing the transmitter outdoors.
- 2. The transmitter is only charged to 20% power when it leaves the factory. Please charge it fully by the adapter cable before installing.

#### 1.3 Receiver overview

The receiver will continue to work inside of the house. It can be operated by AC power or 3 AA batteries (NOT INCLUDED). The receiver has many functions, including channel settings, volume settings, melodies settings, mute mode, etc.

- 1. ON/ OFF: Press & hold to turn ON/ OFF the receiver
  - Turn On 8 channel indicators will flash one by one.
  - Turn Off The low battery indicator will flash twice on the receiver.
- 2. MELODIES Button: There are 12 melodies available. Simply click and choose your favorite one.
- 3. **PAIRED Button:** Press & hold for 3+ seconds to enter pairing mode.
  - During pairing, click the button to choose a channel for the sensor to pair.
  - (For more information about pairing, please read "Chapter 3.2")
- 4. **RESET Button:** One click This will stop the melodies and the flashing of the channel indicator while the receiver's alarm is active.
  - Press & Hold This will reset the receiver and restore the factory setting. This will also reset all the previous pairings with all of the sensors.
- 5. **Volume Button:** Click to adjust volume. There are 4 volume levels available. The lowest volume level is MUTE mode.
- 6. **Low Battery Indicator:** The low battery indicator will flash on the receiver if the battery for the transmitter is low. Once you see this light begin to flash when the alarm is triggered, please recharge your transmitter.

#### Note:

- 1. The receiver can be powered by either AC power or 3 AA batteries. You can use both simultaneously, however, you need to check the batteries every 3 months to avoid any safety issues that may be caused by battery leakage or corrosion.
- 2. The batteries are for emergency use only. We recommend using AC power for the receiver, since batteries will only power the receiver for up to 7 days.
- 3. If you reset the receiver, it will not receive any signal from any of the transmitters. You will need to pair your transmitter with the receiver again to re-establish a connection.
- 4. If your system has multiple transmitters and the low battery indicator is flashing, you can determine which transmitter needs to be charged by looking for the one that is flashing a blue light.

## 2. Getting Started

The "sensor" is a combination of the probe and transmitter. The sensor will arrive pre-configured to a default pairing setting if you buy a set that contains both a sensor and receiver. You will only need to use the pairing operations when you want to change the channel for your sensor, if you want to expand your driveway alarm system with an additional sensor, or to repair severed pairing connections.

## The basic steps for setting up and installing your driveway alarm are as follows:

- 2.1 Power on your device
- 2.2 Check if the receiver and transmitter are paired
- 2.3 Test Signal/ Detecting Range
- 2.4 Charging the Transmitter
- 2.5 Probe & Transmitter Installation
- 2.6 Melodies & Volume Setting
- 2.7 Usage
- 2.8 Notes

## 2.1 Power on your device

**Probe & Transmitter:** Connect the probe to the transmitter. Then, remove the cap of the transmitter and turn it on. If the unit is flashing red, it means it has powered on successfully.

#### Note:

2. If the transmitter does not flash red once it's turned on, it may be out of power. Please charge the transmitter fully before use.

**Receiver:** Plug into AC power or install 3 AA batteries (NOT INCLUDED) into the receiver. Once the receiver has been powered on, 8 channel indicators will flash one by one indicating that the receiver has powered on successfully.

By default, the receiver will turn on after receiving power.

Note: The receiver will sound after all units have been powered on, even if there are no moving metal objects in the surrounding area. Do not worry, as this is a normal response after the transmitter has been activated. This issue will disappear after installing the receiver outdoors.

## 2.2 Check if the receiver and transmitter are paired

After powering on your device, please slide your mobile phone or a metal object parallel to the probe. The transmitter should flash lights, and the receiver should sound an alarm. If both of these events occur and the corresponding channel indicator flashes for 60 seconds when receiver sounds, then pairing was successful.

#### Note:

If the transmitter flashes lights, but the receiver does not sound and the corresponding channel indicator does not flash, please check the operations found in Chapter 3.2 to pair your transmitter with the receiver again.

## 2.3 Test Signal/ Detecting Range

Signal Range: Transmission distance up to 0.5 miles (2600 ft)

Leave the receiver inside the home and place your probe and transmitter in your desired monitoring location.

Slide your mobile phone or a metal object parallel to the probe. At this time, the transmitter should flash a light, the receiver located inside the home should ring, and the corresponding channel indicator should be flashing.

If the transmitter flashes a light, but there is no response from the receiver, please shorten the distance between the sensor (the combination of the probe & transmitter together) and the receiver before you continue testing.

#### Detecting Range (Probe Sensing Distance: Detection distance of up to 12 feet.)

Confirm that the signal works for the transmission in your desired monitored location, then proceed to the next step: *Test Detection Distance of Probe*.

Place the probe parallel to the edge of the driveway and drive your car close enough to enter the 12-foot detection radius. If detection is successful, the transmitter will flash a light once the probe detects motion.

If there is no response from the transmitter, please adjust the distance between probe and driveway and continue testing until the transmitter responds.

During testing, you can also adjust the sensitivity clockwise or counterclockwise, depending on your needs.

#### Note:

- 1. The working range of 2600 ft. is tested in an open space. The range will change according to your unique circumstances. For example, if you are near a thick forest or have metal nearby, the range will decrease due to the additional obstacles. For best results, please test the range before installing the sensor (probe & transmitter). Based on the results of our internal tests, the transmission range of this driveway alarm system is better than other similar products.
- 2. Confirm that there are no metal objects within a 12 ft. radius of the probe. Otherwise the probe will encounter magnetic interference during testing and use, which may limit the probe's ability to detect moving vehicles.

## 2.4 Charging the Transmitter

The transmitter features a built-in 1800 mAh rechargeable battery, however, it is only charged to 20% power when it leaves the factory. For best results, please charge the transmitter fully by the adapter cable before installation.

**Low Power** – The transmitter will flash blue and the low battery indicator will flash on the receiver.

Charging - The transmitter will display a solid RED light.

Fully Charged – The transmitter will display a solid GREEN light.

The transmitter will take 6-8 hours to fully charge and can last 6-12 months (based on usage of up to 5 times per day). Therefore, it is not equipped with a separate charger. Please charge it by the adapter cable of the receiver.

### 2.5 Probe and Transmitter Installation

After confirming the transmission and detection distance base on the operations of Chapter 2.3 and the transmitter is fully charged, the probe and transmitter can now be installed. The steps are as follows:

- 1. Dig a pit about 0.5 ft deep, 1.2ft long and 0.65 ft wide in your desired monitoring location. The pit should be parallel to the driveway, then, bury the probe into the pit.
- 2. Dig a narrow trench or slit from the PROBE to the location of the TRANSMITTER using a flat spade or another tool. This trench/slit will be used to bury the cable between the probe and the transmitter.
- 3. Install the transmitter using the PVC mounting tubes in an open area on the ground for optimal signal transmission.

### Note:

- 1. Install the probe away from heavy traffic to prevent unwanted alarms.
- 2. Install the probe as far as possible from power transformers, power lines, underground gas line, and telephone lines.
- 3. Please keep in mind that the length of cable to connect the probe and the transmitter is 16 feet. Be sure not to install the sensor components too far apart to avoid connectivity issues.

## 2.6 Melodies & Volume Setting

After installing the probe and transmitter, you can now set the volume and melodies on the receiver.

4 Volume Levels - Click to adjust volume. The lowest volume is on MUTE mode.

12 Melodies - Click to choose your preferred melody.

### Note:

- 1. The lowest volume is the MUTE mode. In this mode, the receiver will not sound. However, the corresponding channel indicator will flash for 1 minute when the receiver receives a signal from the transmitter.
- 2. The melodies settings have a memory function, which will store your melody selection even if the receiver is turned off or you experience a power outage.
- 3. The different sensor can not be set the different tones.

## 2.7 Usage

- 1. Open your package as soon as it arrives and test it to ensure there are no quality issues with the product(check the operations of Chapter 2.1-2.3). Then, charge the transmitter fully and install the probe and the transmitter (collectively called the "sensor") in the outdoor location you want to monitor.
- 2. If a moving vehicle or a metal object approaches the probe within a 12 ft. radius, the transmitter will flash a light and send a signal to the receiver.
- 3. When the receiver receives the signal from the transmitter, it will sound, and the corresponding channel indicator will flash for 1 minute.

### 2.8 Notes

- 1. Always test that the transmission distance and the detection range of your sensor (probe & transmitter) is working in your desired location before installation.
- 2. Keep the 12-foot radius surrounding the probe free of metal objects. This will avoid magnetic interference during testing and regular use, which will help to prevent false alarms.
- 3. The sensor (probe and transmitter) will "sleep" for 3 seconds after detecting motion. This means that the sensor will pause for 3 seconds before it begins detecting objects again.
- 4. Transmitters with solar panels can be installed in direct sunshine to receive solar power.

## 3. Advanced Settings

## 3.1 RESET Button

The RESET button is multi-functional, as explained below:

- 1. Stop an active alarm: To stop an active alarm notification, click the RESET button. This will stop the current alarm, and the flashing channel.
- 2. Exit pairing mode: To quit pairing mode, click the RESET button.
- 3. Clear pairing with all sensors: To clear the pairing with all of the sensors, press and hold the RESET button for 3 seconds and all 8 channel indicators will flash simultaneously.

#### Note:

If all of the pairings have been cleared, the receiver cannot receive any signals from any of the existing sensors unless you pair them again.

#### 3.2 PAIRED Button

The sensor (probe & transmitter) will arrive pre-configured to a default pairing setting if you buy a set that contains both a sensor and receiver. There are only 3 occasions when you will need to use the pairing operations:

- (1) When you change the channel for your sensor;
- (2) If you purchased additional sensor or receiver to expand your driveway alarm system;
- (3) Or if you have previously cleared the pairing with your sensors and you need to pair them again.

### How to pair:

- Step 1: Confirm that both units have power and are turned ON before pairing.
- Step 2: Press and hold the PAIRED button for 3+ seconds on the receiver to enter pairing mode. In this mode, the "PAIRED channel" indicator will light up, the "UNPAIRED channel" indicator will not light up, and "start to pair channel" indicator will flash.
- Step 3: Click the PAIRED button again to select the channel for your sensor.
- Step 4: Slide your mobile phone or a metal object parallel to the probe or click the Pairing button on the transmitter. Then, the transmitter should flash a light and the next channel indicator should flash on the receiver. If this occurs, it means pairing is successful.
- Step 5: After completing the pairing process, click the RESET button to quit pairing mode.
- Step 6: Slide your mobile phone or a metal object parallel to the probe again to check if your sensor triggers an alert.

#### Note:

In pairing mode, if the receiver does not detect anything within 10 seconds, it will exit pairing mode automatically.

## 4. Additional Notes

- 1. You can adjust the sensitivity of your transmitter at any time.
- 2. This sensor adapts our latest technology and only detects moving vehicles or metal objects, effectively avoiding false alarms caused by leaves or animals.

## 5. Troubleshooting

Most issues that arise can easily be resolved by changing the settings on your products.

Please read this user manual carefully before you use this machine. Use the table below to find your exact issue and possible solutions for it. If you need more help, you are welcome to contact our customer service team at:

Email: support@Chtoocy.com. Facebook page: @Chtoocy.

Issue		Cause	Solution		
False ala	m, but	there	is	The sensitivity is too high	Adjust the sensitivity to a

nothing in front of the		lower level
sensor.	The transmitter has low power	Check if the outdoor transmitter is flashing blue
	There are metal objects nearby	Keep the probe's surroundings free of any metal objects within a 12-foot radius.
Missed alarms. Vehicles	The sensitivity is too low	Adjust the sensitivity to a higher level
pass through the probe's magnetic field with no alarm	The angle of the probe is not properly installed	Install the probe parallel to the edge of driveway
The battery of transmitter lasted a very short time	The transmitter was not fully charged before installation.	The transmitter is only charged to 20% power when it leaves the factory. Please charge it fully the adapter cable before installation.
after installation	The probe is located near busy traffic, causing the battery to drain too fast	Locate the probe away from heavy traffic to prevent unwanted alarms
	The probe and transmitter are not connected properly	Unplug the cable of probe and plug it into the transmitter again;
The transmitter isn't working	The transmitter ran out of power	If it does not flash a light when the transmitter is on, please charge it fully;
	The transmitter is OFF	Remove the cap to turn it on
The probe and transmitter work, but the receiver does	The transmitter is too far from the receiver	Install the probe and transmitter closer to the receiver
not alert	The transmitter and the receiver are not paired	Please refer to Chapter 3.2 to pair transmitter and receiver

# 6. Adding Additional Sensors and Receivers

If you want a larger security range, you can add more sensors and receivers to your driveway alarm system. This driveway alarm can expand up to 8 sensors and 1 receiver, and the sensors can be paired with the receiver limitlessly.

How to add additional sensors or receivers:

- 1. Buy an additional sensor set (probe & transmitter) or receiver in our store and add it to your previously purchased alarm system.
- 2. Connect the probe to the transmitter and ensure the transmitter and receiver are powered on.
- 3. Press and hold the PAIRED button for 3+ seconds on the receiver to enter pairing mode. In this mode, the "PAIRED channel" indicator will light up, "UNPAIRED channel" indicator will not light up, and "start to pair channel" indicator will flash.
- 4. Click the PAIRED button again you can switch the channel between 8 indicators, and you can choose one channel for your sensor to pair.
- 5. Slide your mobile phone or metal object parallel to the probe or click the Quick Paired button on the transmitter. Then, the transmitter will flash the light(red & blue), the next channel indicator will flash on the receiver. It means the pairing is successful.
- 6. After finishing pairing, click the RESET button to quit the pairing mode.
- 7. Slide your mobile phone or metal object parallel to the probe again to check if your receiver alerts to sure they are paired successfully.

## 7. Questions & Answers

Below are some of the most common problems encountered by our customers. For your convenience, we have provided detailed answers to all of these questions to help you find the solutions you need for any issues you may encounter.

**Question 1:** It's only been a few months and my alarm is not working. What should I do? **Answer 1:** For this issue, we suggest the following:

- 1: Check if the transmitter has run out of power. The transmitter can keep working between 6-12 months after a full charge, however, it only has about 20% power when it leaves the factory, so it needs to be charged fully by the adapter cable before installing.
- 2: Check if the transmitter flashes a light when it detects motion. If it does, attempt to pair it with the receiver again. For more details on how to pair your devices, please read section 3.2 of this manual.
- 3: If you have tried both methods above and the problem persists, please contact us via email or Facebook so that we can help you. Please include your order ID in the message as well as detailed information about the issue you're experiencing. If you have pictures or video, please include them in your message to help us identify and resolve your problem more accurately.

Question 2: The working range doesn't reach 2600 ft.

**Answer 2:** The working range of 2600 ft. is tested in an open space. The range will change according to your unique circumstances. For example, if you are near a thick forest or have metal nearby, the range will decrease due to the additional obstacles. Based on the results of our internal tests, the transmission range of this driveway alarm system is better than other similar

products.

**Question 3:** The alarm system works intermittently.

**Answer 3:** This issue is caused by either low sensitivity or the transmitter having very low power. Please increase the sensitivity or recharge the transmitter.

**Question 4:** How do I know if the receiver is turned on?

**Answer 4:** After connecting to power, please click the VOLUME button and check to see if there is a sound. If you hear a sound, it means the receiver is turned on.

Question 5: The receiver only works for a few days with 3 AA batteries. Is that normal?

**Answer 5:** The batteries are for emergency use only. For daily use, we recommend using AC power for the receiver, since batteries will only power the receiver for up to 7 days (based on usage of up to 5 alerts per day).

Question 6: Can we set different melodies for each sensor?

**Answer 6:** At this time, different sensors cannot be set to different melodies. However, it is possible to know which sensor triggered the alarm by viewing the receiver to see which corresponding channel indicator is flashing. Each channel indicator corresponds to just one sensor, which will notify you as to which sensor was triggered.

**Question 7:** Will there be a lot of false alarms?

**Answer 7:** This driveway alarm detects moving vehicles and metal objects only. Our technology avoids false alarms caused by leaves or animals.

If you encounter the false alarm, it may be caused by the high sensitivity level, please adjust the sensitivity to a lower.

## 8. Warranty

We believe in honesty and reliability for all our products. That's why all of our products must pass a strict testing process before they are packaged for shipping. We are dedicated to providing our customers with 100% satisfactory service and we are proud to provide the following warranty service for this product:

- 1. We provide free replacements instead of repairs for quality-related issues reported within 1 year.
- 2. We provide a whopping 50% discount for replacement purchases made within 2 years if the driveway alarm has suffered accidental damage (e.g., drop and break).
- 3. We also provide lifetime service for all questions regarding your driveway alarm.

If you have any other questions, you are welcome to contact us via email or Facebook:

Email: support@Chtoocy.com

## Facebook Page: @Chtoocy

For additional coupons and deals on products, follow us on our Facebook page at @Chtoocy. We send out coupons and promotions regularly to help our existing customers save the most on their future purchases! Thank you so much for choosing Chtoocy!

### **FCC Statement**

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- •Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- •Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- •Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected
- •Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

Caution: Any changes or modifications to this device not explicitly approved by manufacturer could void your authority to operate this equipment.

This device complies with part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) This device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

RF Exposure Information

The device has been evaluated to meet general RF exposure requirement. The device can be used in portable exposure condition without restriction.

#### ISED Statement

English: This device contains licence-exempt transmitter(s)/receiver(s) that comply with Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada's licence-exempt RSS(s). Operation is subject to the following two conditions:

- (1) This device may not cause interference.
- (2) This device must accept any interference, including interference that may cause undesired operation of the device.

The digital apparatus complies with Canadian CAN ICES-3 (B)/NMB-3(B).

French: Cet appareil contient des émetteurs/récepteurs exempts de licence qui sont conformes aux RSS exemptés de licence d'Innovation, Sciences et Développement économique Canada.

L'exploitation est soumise aux deux conditions suivantes :

- (1) Cet appareil ne doit pas provoquer d'interférences.
- (2) Cet appareil doit accepter toute interférence, y compris les interférences susceptibles de provoquer un fonctionnement indésirable de l'appareil.

l'appareil numérique du ciem conforme canadien peut - 3 (b) / nmb - 3 (b).

This device meets the exemption from the routine evaluation limits in section 2.5 of RSS 102 and compliance with RSS 102 RF exposure, users can obtain Canadian information on RF exposure and compliance.

cet appareil est conforme à l'exemption des limites d'évaluation courante dans la section 2.5 du cnr - 102 et conformité avec rss 102 de l'exposition aux rf, les utilisateurs peuvent obtenir des données canadiennes sur l'exposition aux champs rf et la conformité.

This equipment complies with Canada radiation exposure limits set forth for an uncontrolled environment.

Cet équipement est conforme aux limites d'exposition aux rayonnements du Canada établies pour un environnement non contrôlé.

RF Exposure Statement

The device has been evaluated to meet general RF exposure requirement. This equipment should be installed and operated with minimum distance 0mm between the radiator & your body.

L'appareil a été évalué pour répondre aux exigences générales d'exposition aux RF. Cet équipement doit être installé et utilisé avec une distance minimale de 0 mm entre le radiateur et votre corps.